Race to the Top Early Learning Challenge Grant Project 5.3
FY2013 Early Education Partnerships: Birth to Grade Three Strategy
 
Bidders’ Conference Questions and Answers
 The following are questions raised during the Bidders’ Conferences held in July 2012 and their accompanying answers.
 

Bidder’s Conference Presentation 
1. Will the Bidder’s Conference Presentation be posted on-line?
Yes, it is currently posted at:  http://www.mass.gov/edu/birth-grade-12/early-education-and-care/financial-assistance/funding-opportunities/race-to-the-top-early-learning-challenge-grants/elcg-project-5-3-fy2013-early-education-partnerships.html 
 
 
Intent to Bid 
 
2. Is “FY2013 Regional Readiness Center Activities Grant” the wrong grant name that is listed on page 1 of the RFR, where it reads:
EEC asks that all applicants intending to apply for this funding please send an intent to bid email with the name of the applicant agency and “FY2013 Regional Readiness Center Activities Grant” in the subject line by July 16, 2012,by 4:00 PM to RTTTProcurement@MassMail.State.MA.US.  Failure to submit intent to bid will not preclude an entity from being able to submit a grant application.
 
Yes, that grant name was a typo. The grant name should read “ELCG Project 5.3: FY2013 Early Education Partnerships: Birth to Grade Three Strategy “. The Intent to Bid submissions were received and accepted with both the correct and incorrect subject lines and are not required for a community to apply for this funding. 

 

Eligibility for Future Grants
 
3. If there is a second round of grants for years 3 and 4, would the year 1 and 2 grantees be eligible to apply?  
It is unlikely that year 1 and 2 grantees will be eligible to apply for continued funding through the year 3 and 4 grants. The current intent/goal of the grant is to support 20 communities (10 in each two year grant period) with the goal of sustainability beyond the grant, but eligibility will be clearly outlined in the second round RFR and could depend on demand or an evolution of this work.  EEC reserves the right to determine eligibility criteria if and when it issues a subsequent grant application for future funding. 
 
 
Components of Pre-K to Grade Three Alignment
 
4. On page one of the RFR, it says there are seven components on the Pre-K to third grade system; are there really 8?  
Yes, for the purposes of this RFR there are 8 components (7 was a typo).

 
 
Page Limits
 
5. The Proposal Narrative indicates a 1.5 page limit, is that a 1.5 page limit for each of the 8 components, or for each of the 5 bulleted questions under the components? 
EEC encourages concise and comprehensive responses, but will allow a response that is 1.5 single-sided pages maximum in length per question (see questions below) for each of the eight components. 
A. Describe how your community has presently met, or is meeting, the overall goal.  (applicants have a 1.5 page limit to respond to this question for each component) 
 
B. Describe how your community has engaged successfully in each of the activities listed (please provide specific details for each activity).     (applicants have a 1.5 page limit to respond to this question for each component)
 
C. For each activity, describe the evidence that demonstrates fulfillment of each activity (these may come from the examples provided in the chart below or may be a justification that indicates the activity was successfully implemented). (applicants have a 1.5 page limit to respond to this question for each component)
 
D. Describe how your community would plan to use these grant funds to enhance the work done toward this goal and the additional or enhanced activities that this grant would support, within the existing framework, to build upon the existing work to align components that support children birth to grade three. Please provide specific details for each activity.  (applicants have a 1.5 page limit to respond to this question for each component)
 
E. After the two years of funding for this grant expire, how will the community continue to ensure the activities enhanced and developed through this funding will be sustained?    (applicants have a 1.5 page limit to respond to this question for each component)
 
 
Proposal Narrative
 
6.  Should applicants respond to each of the 5 bullets for each of the 8 PreK-3 components?  What if communities are weak on one or more of the 8 components?
Yes, applicants must respond to each of the 5 bullets for each of the 8 components. Applicants may be doing comprehensive work in some of the component areas and may be weaker in others, but must still speak to each component in their response.  If applicants are weaker in some areas, funds may be used to advance and accelerate work in that area.
 
7.  As noted in the Bidders’ Conference presentation, EEC notes that the child outcomes the Department is trying to achieve require investment in four critical areas: teacher quality; program quality; screening and assessment; and engagement of communities and families. Can applicants focus on one of these four areas, but use the eight components to describe what the applicant is doing and plans to do with future funding to accelerate the work in one area? 

The evaluation criterion for this grant does not frame the application by the four critical investment areas, though all are inherently interconnected and advanced through this work.   Grantees are required to use the 8 components/questions provided in the Proposal Narrative to respond to this grant, not the four investment areas.  
 
Strong applications will respond to each of the five questions under each of the eight components and will demonstrate they have been successful in moving alignment for the birth to grade three population in their community forward and will have a strong plan to advance these efforts with the infusion of grant funds.
 
For example, the response may focuses more on plans to use funds for professional development (which falls under teacher quality and program quality) if that is the area in which they feel their community needs the greatest support to accelerate their alignment work. 
8. The Proposal Narrative document references “birth to age five” and “birth to grade three” alignment - please clarify.
The Race to the Top Early Learning Challenge Funds that support this grant have prioritized funds for children ages birth to five. This grant extends the benefit of alignment for that age group, beginning at birth to children in third grade. 
 
 All references that read “birth to age five” should read “birth to grade three”. Grantees must be working at the local level to enhance the current work in their communities around the alignment of services for children from birth through grade three.  
 
9. Do all applicants need to focus on birth-3rd grade; can applicants only focus on pre-k- through age five?
All applicants must submit a comprehensive application that focuses on the birth to grade 3 population.  
 
10. Are graphic organizers allowed in the response? Can graphics, charts, etc be provided in the application response?
Yes, though all budget information must be captured on the template provided by EEC.
 
 
Fund Use
 
11.  In the Fund Use section of the RFR document, "Equipment" is listed as an eligible and an ineligible expense – please clarify.
Equipment may be an allowable expense.  It is represented on line 4 of the budget template released as part of Activity 5.3.  When charging expenses for equipment, EEC will need the applicant to include: the purpose of the purchase, office location, justification of the need, cost of item, and item description.  EEC will review proposed expenditures for equipment and determine whether or not they will be allowed.  
 
12. In the Fund Use section of the RFR document, it states that grant funds shall not be used to pay for conferences and conference fees. Would a leadership alignment institute fall into the conference category? 
Yes, this would be considered a conference and thus grant funds cannot be used for such purpose. This grant is meant to fund items that are part of an on-going sustainable effort not simply bringing people together for one day  in a conference setting.
 
13. The grant indicates that "the grantee may charge indirect costs on all of its applicable direct line items (per its federally approved IDCR letter) as well as on the first $25,000 of each contract listed on line 6 of its budget" – please clarify.
This language reflects the most recent guidance from the U.S. DOE.  Because Activity 5.3 is a competitive procurement targeted to cities/towns, the selected entity will be considered a sub-recipient.  If the city or town has a federally approved indirect cost rate (and they need to include a copy of the letter in their submission), the city or town can charge its IDCR against the line items in the budget template allowed in their approval letter.  
 
For instance, the approval letter for one town may allow the city or town to charge its IDCR only on salary and fringe.  An approval letter for another city or town may allow the city or town to charge its IDCR against salary, fringe, and supplies.  In these instances the IDCR is charged against the total value in the approved lines on the budget template.  However, the federal government has been clear that the IDCR may be charged against only the first $25,000 of every contract stated in line 6 of subrecipient’s budget.  So, if a contract stated in line 6 is worth $100,000, applicants can charge the IDCR only on the first $25,000.  Referencing the budget template, note in line 10 (the location for IDCR charges) that the federal government asks us to “identify the category to which IDCR is being charged”. 
 
 
Number of Grants Awarded / Funding Allocation/ Matching Funds
 
14. Is it possible that more than ten grants will be awarded for this two year grant period?
Yes.

15. If a new federal administration enters, will that change this allocation?
While EEC cannot make any guarantees regarding future funding allocations, EEC does not anticipate that a change in administration will affect these funds. As noted in the Funding section of the RFR, the funds supporting this initiative are from the Federal Race to the Top-Early Learning Challenge Grant and funding is subject to allotment and appropriation.
 
16. Explain what EEC means by matching funds that can be in-kind or cash.
In-Kind funds may include use of space etc. and should be clearly defined in the budget. A cash match would be when a partner provides cash in addition to the funds provided in this grant to support the efforts outlined in the grant. Matching funds cannot include another EEC funding source.  
 
 
Extended Learning Opportunities
 
17. The grant references offering “extended learning opportunities,” what does that look like for younger children? 
For younger children, that definition is flexible and should be designed to meet the needs of the children in the community. Opportunities might include efforts to limit summer learning loss, after school programming for some of the older children, or activities at local informal settings (libraries, museums etc.) etc. 
 
 
Lead Agencies / Joint Applications
 
18. Can multiple school districts apply for this funding together?
Yes, however EEC encourages school districts to address and meet the needs of their local communities. There may not be added value to mixing two different systems because this work should be framed from the local level perspective.   In regional school districts with regional governance structures, this may make more sense. 
 
19. Can two small communities that are aligned submit a joint proposal? This may make sense if the communities are small and want to effectively spend the full allocation of funding?  
Yes, however multiple communities submitting a joint proposal would need to demonstrate the value of their working together toward one common goal. Applicants do not have to ask for the maximum allocation and the focus of the applicant should be on identifying the high needs children in the community and understanding their needs. 
 
20. In rural areas and other areas with expansive geography, can two regional towns submit their own grant application?
Yes. In this situation EEC may select one of the applications for funding and not the other. Also, these applications should not be copies of one another; they must address the distinct needs of the community named in the application.
 
21. Does Boston have to apply as the whole community, or could smaller subsets of neighborhoods apply such as Hyde Park, Jamaica Plain etc.?

Yes, a subset community in Boston can submit an application.
 
22. Does this grant call for a Lead Agency, but then can you have a consortium group to participate in your plan?
Yes, this grant calls for one Lead Agency to convene a consortium of partners to advance this work.  In the Eligibility section of the RFR document, EEC indicates a list of community stakeholders that lead applicants are encouraged to engage in this partnership. 
Applicants must collaborate with the stakeholders listed as “Mandatory,” which include: private early education and care programs (center based, family child care and out of school time programs); public school pre-K to Grade 3 programs; Community Family and Community Engagement Grantee; and Educator and Provider Support Grantees.
 

23. Does the lead agency need to be a public school district?
No, the lead agency will depend on the community, and does not need to be a public school district.
 
 
Ensuring Impact of Funding 
 
24. Are there a number of children that grantees must touch through this funding?
Strong proposals will have a sense of where the children are in the community and what their needs are, but EEC is not giving a prescribed number of children that need to be served or touched through this funding as it differs greatly across communities. 
 
All proposals must include a clear definition of their community’s profile (including the children to be affected and participating educators, community based programs and public schools). Proposals should clearly articulate who will benefit from their proposed plan to use funding to accelerate their current Pre-K to Grade Three alignments strategies. 
 

 

Priority Applications

 

25. Is the priority of the grant to give funding to Gateway Communities, Commissioner Districts and Home Visiting communities only?

 

All communities are eligible to respond and will be considered for funding; these priority groups are noted in the RFR. 
 
If a community identifies high needs children as their only priority and their community is not from one of the priority communities, their application will still be considered. 
 
Successful applications will have multiple partners across the community and are already doing most of this work and have a plan to accelerate that work with this funding.
 

 

English Language Learners and “High Needs”

 
26. Are English Language Learners considered children with high needs?

Yes, English Language Learners are considered children with high needs. 
 
 

